
THREE HUNDRED 
AND TWENTY .. NINTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
on Monday, 8 August I949, at 8.45 p.m. 

President: Mr. James THORN. 

'l'ROIS CENT VINGT-NEUVIi~ME 
SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais des Nations, a Geneve, 
le lundi 8 aout I949, a 20 h. 45 

President: M. James THORN. 

75. Continuation of the discussion on 75. 
the report of the fourth session of , 

Suite de Ia discussion du rapport 
de Ia quatrieme session de Ia Com
mission des questions economiques 
et de l'emploi ; et sur le probleme 
du chomage et du plein emploi 
(E/1332, E/1332/ Add.1-3, E/1356, 
E/1356/Add.l, E/1357, E/1378, 
E/1380/Rev.l, EJCN.1/63, EJCN.l/ 
63/Add.l-7) 

the Economic and Employment 
Commission ; and on the problem 
of unemployment allld full employ· 
.ment (E/1332, E/1332/ Add.1-3, 
E/1356, E/1356/Add.l, E/1357, 
E/1378, E/1380/Rev.l, EJCN.l/63, 
EJCN.l/63/ Add.1-7) 

Mr. CORLEY SMITH (United Kingdom), resuming 
the statement he had begun at the preceding meet
ing, emphasized the crucial importance of the inter
national factor in the maintenance of a successful 
policy of full employment. Since the export 
market constituted the least predictable sector of 
aggregate demand, it was in that connexion that 
the problem of stabilizing the demand for labour 
proved most difficult. That was particularly true 
of a country as dependent on exports as was the 
United Kingdom. 

A further danger for such countries was that a de
cline in exports would make it increasingly difficult 
to pay for essential imports, a problem dealt with 
in question 12 of the Secretary-General's question
naire (E/1378). He considered the Sub-Commis
sion for Employment and Economic Stability to 
have been a little naive in showing so much 
surprise that countries in that position should 
indicate their intention of imposing import restric
tions. There was nothing sinister in such a decision, 
which was in full accordance with the principles of 
the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade, and 
had been taken with a view to making the most 
economical use of available supplies of foreign 
currency. It was difficult to see what else such 
countries could do. 

Replies to question 7 (d) of the questionnaire 
had shown that Governments of countries in which 
depression might originate were naturally very 
reluctant to commit themselves in advance to a 
more generous policy of foreign loans and of grants 
as a means of relieving unemployment at horne. 
Moreover, the replies of the International Monetary 
Fund and the International Bank for Reconstruc
tion and Development showed that very little 
assistance was to be expected from that quarter in 
easing the balance of payments difficulties which 
.might arise if unemployment affected certain 
countries only. 

Undoubtedly, import restrictions were very 
undesirable barriers to trade, and might not suffice 
to avert severe unemployment and dislocation in 
the country applying them. If foreign exchange 
became too scarce, it might be necessary to reduce 
imports of essential raw materials, and thus give 

M. CoRLEY SMITH (Royaurne-Uni) reprend la 
suite de l'expose qu'il a commence a la seance 
precedente. II insiste sur !'importance essentielle 
du facteur international, si l'on vent poursuivre. 
avec succes nne politique de plein ernploi. Puisque, 
dans I' ensemble de la dernande, le rnarche des expor
tations represente le secteur qui echappe le plus 
aux previsions, c'est dans ce dornaine qu'il est le 
plus difficile de stabiliser la dernande de rnain
d' reuvre. Cela est particulierernent vrai pour un 
pays qui depend autant de ses exportations que le 
Royaurne-Uni. 

Autre danger pour les pays qui se trouvent dans 
ce cas: un flechissernent des exportations rendrait 
de plus en plus difficile le paiement des importations 
essentielles. C'est sur ce problerne que porte la 
question No r2 du questionnaire du Secretaire 
general (Ejr378). M. Corley Smith estime que la 
Sons-Commission de l'ernploi et de la stabilite 
econornique a fait preuve de quelque naivete en se 
rnontrant si surprise de voir les pays places dans 
nne telle situation rnanifester leur intention d'im
poser des restrictions a !'importation. Une telle 
decision n'est dictee par aucun noir dessein, et 
elle a ete prise en plein accord avec les principes 
de 1' Accord general sur les tarifs douaniers et .le 
commerce, afin d'utiliser selon l'econornie la plus 
rigoureuse les disponibilites en devises etrangeres. 
II est difficile de voir ce que de tels pays pourraient 
faire d'autre. 

Les reponses ala question No 7 d) du question
naire ont rnontre que les Gouvernernents des pays 
ou nne depression pourrait se produire repugnent 
naturellernent a s'engager a l'avance a appliquer 
nne politique plus genereuse de prets et de dons a 
1' etranger pour attenuer le chornage chez eux. En 
outre, les reponses du Fonds rnonetaire interna
tional et de la Banque internationale pour la 
reconstruction et le developpernent rnontrent qu'on 
ne pent attendre de ce c6te qu'une aide tres modeste 
pour attenuer les difficultes de la balance des paie
rnents qui pourraient se produire si le ch6rnage 
n'affectait que certains pays seulernent. 

Sans aucun doute, les restrictions a }'importa
tion representent des obstacles tres inopportuns au 
commerce, et elles ne suffisent peut-etre pas a 
eviter un ch6rnage aigu et la dislocation de l'econo
rnie dans les pays qui y ont recours. Si les disponi
bilites en devises se rarefient a l'exces, il pourra 

680 



rise to a kind of nnemployment which no monetary 
policy could overcome. 

The Sub-Commission had perhaps exaggerated 
the amount of help which the Fnnd and the Bank 
and similar institutions might be expected to give 
to relieve balance of payments difficulties attendant 
on depression. It must, however; be admitted 
that it had not originally been anticipated that 
those institutions would have to deal with an 
additional balance of payments problem arising 
out of depression superimposed upon a chronic, 
unsolved disequilibrium. 

As for the question of the action which the 
Council might take, his delegation saw no point in 
addressing at the moment a set of concrete recom
mendations on policy to Governments, since such ' 
recommendations should be based on a careful 
analysis of the actual situation and remedies 
required. 

For the fact that the Council possessed. at the 
moment, neither analysis nor policy, its advisory 
bodies were largely to blame. The Sub-Commission 
had, indeed, suggested a whole series of studies 
ranging over the most complex and delicate ques
tions of international economic policy, not all of 
them particularly relevant to the problem of main
taining employment and demand. For instance, 
the restoration of multilateralism and converti
bility was primarily an objective of trade policy, 
and the solution of the dollar problem, though 
certainly relevant to the employment problem, 
also stretched far beyond it. He doubted, in fact, 
whether the Council was the proper place to lannch 
a study of the world's most difficult balance of 
payments problem. 

A third topic suggested by the Sub-Commission, 
that of the bearing of "Government intervention" 
on international plans, was far too vague.· Hence, 
though agreeing with the Sub-Commission that 
more study was required, his delegation felt that 
the suggestions put forward did not offer a very 
good description of the kind needed. 

Even less guidance might be expected from the 
Commission itself, which appeared to be willing to 
leave decisions on studies to the Secretary-General; 
he doubted therefore whether the Commission was 
serving any useful purpose, and wondered whether 
it should not, like the Sub-Commissions, be asked 
to make way for some more effective method of 
organizing the preparatory work of the Council. 
While the preparation of studies should normally 
be in the hands of the Secretary-General, he should 
not be left without guidance as to the sort of 
studies required, particularly since the Secretariat 
itself had been rather slow i~ preparing studies to 
assist the Council in drawing up recommendations 
for action in the field of employment, as distinct 
froni that of development. 

etre necessaire de reduire les importations de 
matieres prem~eres essentielles, ce qui provoquerait 
une sorte de chomage dont aucnne politique mone
taire ne pourrait triompher. 

La Sons-Commission a peut-etre exagere le 
_volume de l'aide qu'on pourrait attendre du Fonds 
monetaire international, de la Banque et des 
institutions analogues, pour attenuer les difficultes 
en matiere de balance des paiements qui accompa
gnent nne depression. On doit cependant recon
naitre qu'a l'origine, l'on n'avait pas prevu que 
ces institutions devaient s'occuper d'un probleme 
complementaire de balance des paiements dil a nne 
crise qui s'ajouterait a un desequilibre chronique 
auquel on n'a jamais pu remedier; 

Quant a la question des mesures que le Conseil 
pourrait prendre, la delegation du Royaume-Uni 
ne voit aucnne raison, a l'heure actuelle, d'adresser 
aux Gouvernements un ensemble de recomman
dations concretes sur la politique a suivre, puisque 
de telles recommandations doivent etre fondees sur 
nne analyse minutieuse de la situation actuelle et 
des remedes necessaires. 

Si le Conseil, a l'heure actuelle, n'est pas en 
possession de cette analyse et n'est pas en mesure 
de fixer sa ligne de conduite, ses organismes con
sultatifs en sont en grande partie responsables. 11 
est vrai que la Sons-Commission a propose toute 
nne garnme d'etudes portant sur les questions les 
plus complexes et les plus delicates de la politique 
economique internationale, dont certaines n'ont 
pas particulierement trait au maintien de l'emploi 
et de la demande. C'est ainsi que le retour au multi
lateralisme et a la convertibilite des changes est 
essentiellement nn objectif de politique commer
ciale, et la solution du probleme du dollar, bien 
qu'elle ait certainement des rapports avec le pro
bleme de l'emploi, deborde elle aussi largement ce 
probleme. A vrai dire, le representant du Royaume
Uni se demande si le Conseil est bien 1' en droit ou il 
convient d'entreprendre nne etude du tres difficile · 
probleme mondial de la balance des paiements. 

Un troisieme sujet d'etudes propose par la Sons
Commission, celui des incidences de 1'« intervention 
gouvernementale » sur les plans internationaux, 
est beaucoup trop vague. C'est pourquoi, bien que 
reconnaissant avec la Sons-Commission qu'une 
etude plus approfondie de cette question est 
necessaire, la delegation du Royaume-Uni estirne 
que les suggestions qui ont ete avancees ne com
portent pas nne definition tres valable du genre 
d' etudes necessaire. 

Quant a Ia Commission elle-meme, on ne peut 
qu' en attendre encore moins de directives, puis
qu'elle semble desireuse de laisser au Secretaire 
general le soin de se prononcer sur les etudes a 
entreprendre; le representant du Royaume-Uni se 
demande done si la Commission a nne utilite quel'
conque, et il se pose la question de sa voir si, comme 
aux Sons-Commissions, on ne devrait pas lui deman
der de ceder la place a un organe qui permettrait 
d'organiser plus efficacement le travail preparatoire 
du Conseil. Alors que la preparation des etudes doit 
normalement etre confiee au Secretaire general, 
celui-ci ne do it pas etre laisse sans directives quan t 
au genre d'etudes qui est demande, d'autant plus 
que le Secretariat lui-meme a ete assez lent a pre~ 
parer les etudes destinees a aider le. Conseil a redi.:. 
ger ses recommandations sur les decisions a pren
dre dans le domaine de l'emploi, considere comme 
un domaine distinct de celui du developpement. 

681 



He suggested, therefore, that a group of about 
three eminent ·economists, one of. whom might 
well be a: member of the Secretariat, should be 
appointed by the Secretary-General to review the 
economic and· employment situation and express 
their conclusions, in all freedom, as to the adequacy 
of national policies and existing international 

:arrangements to maintain a high level of demand 
and employment. They could, naturally, draw on 
the replies sent by Governments and specialized 
agencies to the Secretary-General's employment 
questionnaire. Such a group of independent 
experts, each able to speak his mind in a personal 
capacity, would be freer to advocate, without 
giving offence, such national or international 
measures as might be required than a group con
sisting of representatives of Governments or of 
international organizations.. Their report would 
moreover, if widely circulated, have a greater 
persuasi:ve value with public opinion than any 
other form of study. 

Since, if events took the wrong turn, the situation 
would be rather serious by the early months of 
1950, the question of the study should be treated 
as a matter of urgency, so that the report might 
be available in printed form in time for discussion 
at the tenth session of the ·Council. In the prepa
ration of the . study, it would be advisable for the 
Secretary-General to keep the group of experts 
informed of any similar studies in progress, and 
particularly of the report in course of preparation 
by the International Labour Organization.1 · 

If the Economic and Employment Commission 
were kept. in existence, and if the Commission 
meeting were so timed as to permit the group to 
prepare its· report and submit it to the Commission, · 
so much the better, but it woulfl be preferabll;: for 
the group of experts to· havet ime to do. a thorough 
job, and for the Council to do without the Com-

. mission:s advice, rather than unduly to rush the 
work of the group of experts. 

His delegation was prepared to. formulate a . 
resolution, or partake in a joint resolution, calling ' 
for such a study. 

He had also give1;1 much thought to the question ' 
whether there was anything else the Council might 
do about employment apart from studies, and 
viewed favourably the suggestion of the Sub-Com
mission that Governments. should exchange infor- · 
mation .on full employment policy. His delegation ' 
was therefore willing to incorporate in its resolution 
the proposal that Governments be asl]:ed to report 
annually on their policies for· maintaining full 
employment and high and stable levels of demand, 
and on the measure of succe.ss achieved. He was, 
however, open to further suggestions on other 
methods of achieving that result. 

Miss SENDER, Consultant from the American 
Federation of Labor, speaking at the invitation of 
the PRESIDENT, affirmed that, a feeling of insecurity 
being the .worst scourge in the life of the working 
man, prosperity could be enjoyed only when 
accompanied· by that freedom from fear, for the 

1 See document Ejr38o. 

Il suggere done. qu'un groupe d' environ trois 
economistes eminents, dont Tun pourrait etre un 
membre du Secretariat, soit charge par le Secretaire 
general d'examiner la situation economique et de 
l'emploi et de formuler leurs conclusions en toute 
liberte ·sur la question de savoir si l<:;s politiques 
nationales et les. accords internationaux existants 
su:ffiront a maintenir un niveau eleve de demande 
et d'emploi. lls pourront n·aturellement utiliser les 
reponses envoyees par. les Gouvernements et les 
institutions specialisees au questionnaire du Secre
taire general sur l'emploi. Un tel groupe d'experts 
independants, dont chacun pourrait exprimer son 
avis a titre personnel, serait plus libre de preconiser, 
sans froisser aucune susceptibilite, les mesures de 
caractere national ou international qui pepvent 
etre necessaires, que ne le serait un groupe compose 
de representants des Gouvernements ou des organi
sations internationales. En outre, ce rapport, s'il 
etait largement diffuse, aurait un effet plus con vain
cant sur • !'opinion publique qu'aucune autre 
espece d' etude. 

Si la situation s'aggravait, de graves problemes se 
poseraient des les premiers mois de 1950; I' etude de 
cette ·question do it · done etre consideree comme 
urgente, afin que le rapport puisse etre disponible 
a temps, dans sontexte imprime, pour etre examine 
a la dixieme session du Conseil. Au cours de sa 
preparation, il serait bon que le Secretaire general 
tienne le groupe d'experts. au courant de toutes 
les etudes anal9gues qui pourraient etre en cours, 
et notamment du rapport qu'est en train de prepa
rer !'Organisation internationale du travail 1• 

Si la .Commission des questions economiques et 
de l'emploi n'est pas supprin).ee, et si la reunion du 
groupe rl' experts a lie-q a une <;late qui lui permette 
d'e1aborer s.on rapport a temps pour que la Com
mission eh soit saisie, fort bien, mais .il vaudrait 
mieux encore que le groupe d'experts dispose ,de 
temps pour etudier le probleme a fond, et que re 
Conseil se passe de l'avis de la Commission, sans 
presser indfunent le groupe de finir sa tiiche. 

La delegation du Royaume-Uni est disposee a 
formuler une resolution ou a s'associer a une 
resolution commune reclamant une telle etude. 

M. Corley Smith a eg~ement beaucoup reflechi 
a la question de savoir si le Conseil pourrait contri
buer ·a. la solution du probleme de l'emploi par 
autre chose que des etudes, et il est favorable a la 
suggestion de la Sons-Commission tendant a inviter 
les Gouvernements a echanger des renseignements 
sur la politique qu'ils suivent en vue de realiser le ' 
plein emploi. Sa delegation est done {lisposee a 
,incorporer a sa resolution la proposition tendant a 
prier les Gouvernements de presenter un rapp,ort, 
une fois par an, sur la politique qu'ils suivent en 
vue de maintenir le plein emploi et un niveau eleve 
.et stable de la demande, ainsi que sur la mesure 
·dans laquelle leur politique a ete couronnee de 
succes. L'orateur est toutefois dispose a admettre 
de nouvelles suggestions quant aux autres methodes 
qui permettraient d'arriver a ce resultat. 

Mlle SENDER, Consultante de laFCderation ame
ricaine du travail, prenant la parole sur !'invitation 
du PRESIDENT, a:ffirme que, le sentiment d'insecu7 
rite etant le pire fteau de la vie du travailleur, 
celui-ci ne pent jouir de la prosperite que si elle 
s'accompagne de la liberation de la peur, que feu le 

1 Voir le document E/r38o. 

682 



realization of which the late President Roosevelt 
and·.his successor, President Truman, had made 
such great efforts. 

An additional reason for the vital interest taken 
by her organization in the discussions of the Econo~ 
mic and Employment Commission and its sub
commissions was the slight, but growing, downward 
trend.·in world economy. Labour in countries 
with an economy based predotninantly on free 
enterprise· did not, however, accept such crises 
with passive resignation as evils inseparable from 
the capitalist system. Indeed, the world had 
gained sufficient experience to realize that an 
incipient downward trend could be counteracted 
in free economies, provided the necessary measures 
were well planned and taken in time. For that 
reason she regretted the valuable time lost in 
discussing whether the symptoms observed indi
cated the· beginning of a recession or merely a 
period of transition arid readjustment from a sellers' 
to a buyers' market. It was essential if a depression 
was to be prevented, that prompt measures be 
taken as soon as the first symptoms were perceived. 

President Roosevelt et son successeur, le President 
Truman, ont fait de si grands efforts pour rendre 
possible. 

Une .autre raison. de. l'interet fondamentatque 
sou organisation porte .at+x debats de la Commission 
des questions econopriques et de' 1' emploi et de ses. 
sous-comrp.issions, t' est la ten dance a la crise, · peu 
marquee encore mais croissante, qui se manifeste 
dans l'econotnie mondiale .• La main-d'reuvre, dans 
les pays dont l'econotnie est essentiellement fpildee 
sur·la libre entreprise, n' aocepte. pas de telles crises 
avec une resignation passive, comme autant :de 
maux inseparables du systeme capitaliste. En 
verite, le monde a acquis une experience suffisante 
pour comprendre qu'une tendance a la crise peut 
etre neutralisee . a ses debu,ts dans les regimes 
d'economie libre, a condition que les mesures neces
saires. soient minutieus~ent pteparees et prises a 
temps. Pour cette · •raison, elle regrette le temps 
precieux perdu a discu~erla question de sa voir si les 
symptomes observes aunoncent le debut d~une crise 
ou seulement une periode de transition et de rea
daptation et le passage. d'un marcbe favorable au 
vendeur a un marche·favorable a l'acheteur. Il est 
indispensable,' .si . I: .on' do it. eviter. une depression, 
que des mesures s.oient prises sans retard des 
que. les premiers.· symptOmes, seront enregistres. 

Her.organization noted with interest that .anum- - La Federation americaine du travail note 
ber of the answers given to the questionnaire on 1 avec interet du fait qu'un certain · nombre des 
"National and international action to achieve or reponses donnees au questionnaire sur les << Mesures' 
maintain full employment and economic stability" de cara.ctere national et international prises en vue 
(E/1378) showed that several Governments had a de realiset ou· de maintenir le ,plein emploi et lq. 
series of constructive measures on hand in readiness stabilite economique >> (E/r378) font apparaitre que 
for the first signs of a downward trend in their plusiem's Gouvernetnents ont deja prevu toute une 
economy. 

Denmark, for instance, included in its national 
budget basic data for a nation-wide economic 
programme, and also envisaged a programme of 
deliberate deficit financing to combat unemploy
ment .. A further interesting feature was the holding 
in reserve ·of approved emergency projects ·to 
become operative at short notice. 

The United Kingdom, for its part, had sought to 
create new opportunities for employment by . the 
construction: of a large nuinber of enterprises in the 
development areas, while the Investment Control 
Act direCted new capital issues and credits to 
industries to which preference had been given in the 
investment programn:ie. 

Australia deserved special mention. for the 
coherent system of agencies it had established, 
starting from the Loan Council, which determined 
the amounts, allocation and terms of loans. Other 
measures were the setting up of a Commonwealth 
employment service to deal. with vocational guid
ance, employment information and. the problem of 
seasonal fluctuations and movements of labour, 
aud a series of "automatic economy stabilizers" 
such as carefully timed public works, unemploy
ment benefits and housing subsidies for families in 
low-income groups. There was also a reserve of 
national works programmes to a total value of 
£57o,ooo;ooo, of which projects to the value of 
£z4s,ooo,ooo could be put in hand immediately. 

serie de mesures constructives qui seraient utilisee.s 
des que les premiers signes d'une . tendance a la 
baisse ,se ·manifesteraient dans leur economie. 

Le Danemark, par exemple,. englobe dans. son 
budget national des donnees devant Servir de. base 
a un programme economique: a l'echelle nationale, 
et i1 envisage egalement de se donner un. budget 
deliben'iment deficitaire.pourcombattrele chOmage, 
Une autre caracteris,tique interessante est fournie 
par le fait qu'on tient en reserve des progratntnes 
de tra.vaux deja approuves :et qui pourraient etre 
mis: en reuv're .a bref delai.. . 

Le: Royaume-Uni a, pour· sa part; cherche a 
creer. de nouvelles ::facilites d'emploi eh creant un 
grand nombre 'd'entreprises; dans les regions de 
developpement, tandis que·l'<< Investment Control 
Act» dirige les nouvelleS emissions de capital et les 
credits frais vers· les · ihdnstries auxquelles la 
priorite a ete accordee dans le programme d'inves
tissement. 

L' Australie merite , une mention . particuliere 
pour le systeme coherent que .son administration 
a mis au point, a commencer par le « Loa:h Coun~ 
cil », qui determine le montant, ·I' attribution et les 
conditions des prets. D'autres mesures sont: la 
creation d'un Service de l'emploi du Common
wealth, qui s'occupe de !'orientation ·profession
neUe, des renseignements relatifs a l'emploi et. du 
probleme des fluctuations et des mouvements 
saisonniers de la main-d'reuvre, ainsi que d'une 
serie de dacteurs automatiques de stabilisation ll, 
tels que des travaux publics, echelonnes judicieuse
sement, les allocations de chomage et les subven
tions pour le logement des families appartenarit 
aux groupes a faible revenu. Il existe egalement en 
reserve des programmes de travaux d'interet 
na. tional pour une valeur totale de 570 millions 

683 



The Benelux Governments, in particular that 
of the Netherlands, devoted constant attention to 
maintaining employment at a high level. It was 
for that purpose that the Central Planning Bureau of 
the Netherlands had come into existence, and that 
the establishment of a Cycle Equalization Fund 
wai envisaged, which would enable private firms 
to put aside reserve funds, free of tax, for use only 
during a depression. 

Sweden had created both a State Employment 
Board to combat unemployment through State
subsidized planning, and an Investment Council, 
comprising representatives of the Government and 
of commercial and industrial organizations, with 
the task of ensuring well-balanced planning of 
investments. Furthermore, the national budget 
system had been changed so that the working 
budget had to be balanced only over a period of 
several years. The State Employment Board had 
also planned a programme of works to a value of 
approximately 4,roo million kronor, which would, 

• in the event of a depression, double the normal 
rate of investment in various fields for one year. 

. The United States of America, by its Employ
ment Act of I946, had also made provision for a 
certain degree of planning. Two special agencies 
assisted the President in implementing the Act: 
the Council of Economic Advisers established in 
the Executive Office of the President, and the 
Joint Committee on the Economic Report, made 
up of seven members of the Senate and seven from 
the House of Representatives. 

It was to be expected that further developments 
in the direction of planning for maximum employ
ment would ensue, but the essential thing was that 
it should be possible to apply such measures 
without delay when the need arose. 

One striking feature of the replies to the Secre
tariat's questionnaire was the emphasis placed by 
all Governments on measures of a national cha
racter, and the comparative ·neglect of inter
national measures; in other words, a tendency for 
each country to plan only around its own prospe
rity. Such a tendency did not seem to correspond 
with the concept of international co-operation 
as defined in the Charter. It was therefore desirable 
to examine whether international action would 
promote greater stability in world economy, and 
in this connexion her organization wished to make 
the following suggestions. 

The International Bank for Reconstruction and 
Development, which considered its task of recon
struction as nearly completed, might well examine 
the possibility of adopting measures to counteract 
cyclical trade depressions as a means of facilitating 
its second task of promoting economic develop
ment. Although it might be objected that anti
depression measures were of a sporadic nature, 
whereas economic development required a gradual 
but steady flow of capital, it should not be forgotten 
that security of investment in under-developed 
areas would be considerably improved by the 

de livres sterling, dont certains, qui couteraient 
245 millions de livres, pourraient etre mis en ceuvre 
immediatement. · 

Les Gouvernements du Benelux, en particulier 
celui des Pays-Bas, ont consacre une attention 
constante au maintien de l'emploi a un niveau 
eleve. C' est a ce souci que repond la creation du 
Bureau central de planification des Pays-Bas, c'est 
a cette fin qu'on envisage la creation d'un fonds de 
compensation pour le cas de crise, ce qui permet
trait aux entreprises privees de mettre de cote des 
reserves exemptes d'imp6ts qui seraient utilisees 
en periode de depression. 

La Suede a cree a la fois un Bureau gouverne
mental de l'emploi pour combattre le ch6mage au 
moyen de travaux subventionnes par l'Etat, et 
une Commission de l'investissement comprenant 
des .representants du Gouvernement et des organi
sations comme.rciales et industrielles, et chargee 
d'etablir des plans d'investissement bien con<;us 
et coordonnes. En outre, la formule du budget 
national a ete modifiee de sorte que l'equilibre du 
budget ordinaire ne doive etre assure que sur une 
periode de plusieurs annees. Le Bureau gou
vernemental de l'emploi a egalement etabli le 
plan d'un programme de travaux jusqu'a concur
rence d'environ 4.roo millions de couronnes qui, 
en cas de crise, doubleraient le taux normal 
d'investissement dans divers domaines, prevu 
pour une annee. 

Les Etats-Unis d'Amerique, par 1'(< Employment 
Act)) de 1946, ont, dans une certaine mesure, fait 
place a la planification ; deux institutions speciales 
aident le President dans la mise en application de 
la loi, le Bureau des conseillers economiques, 
cree au sein du cabinet du President, et le Comite 
mixte du rapport economique, compose de sept 
membres du Senat et de sept membres de la 
Chambre des representants. 

On s'attend qu'en matiere de planification, 
d'autres mesures soient prises pour donner a 
l'emploi son niveau le plus haut, mais ce qui est 
essen tiel, c' est qu'il soit possible de les mettre en 
ceuvre sans retard quand le besoin s'en fera sentir. 

Une caracteristique frappante des reponses au 
questionnaire du Secretariat, c'est !'importance 
accordee par tousles Gouvernements aux mesures 
de caractere national et leur indifference relative 
a l'egard des mesures internationales; en d'autres 
termes, la tendance de chaque pays a edifier des 
plans en fonction de sa propre prosperite. Une 
telle tendance ne semble pas correspondre a l'idee 
de la cooperation internationale qui se trouve 
definie dans la Charte. II est done souhaitable 
d'examiner si des mesures de caractere interna
tional seraient de nature a accroltre la stabilite de 
1' economie mondiale et, a cet egard, 1' organisation 
qu'elle represente desire formuler les suggestions 
suivantes. 

La Banque internationale pour la reconstruction 
et le developpement, qui estime que sa tache de 
reconstruction est presque achevee, ferait bien 
d'examiner s'il est possible d'adopter des mesures 
pour neutraliser les crises commerciales cycliques, 
ce qui serait un moyen de rendre plus facile 
l'accomplissement de la deuxieme tache dont elle 
est chargee: favoriser le developpement econo
mique. Bien qu'on puisse objecter que les mesures 
pour lutter contre les crises sont de caractere spo
radique alors que le developpement economique 

un mouvement de capitaux progressif mais 

684 



elimination of fluctuations in the demand for 
exports of primary materials from such areas. 

At the moment, international exchange diffi
culties were preventing that increased exchange 
of goods which was a basic pre-requisite of increased 
productivity throughout the world. The result 
was to be seen in the conclusion of a series of bila
teral trade agreements and in the shrinkage of 
multilateral trade. It would be worth while inves
tigating whether the setting up of a central 
clearing-house under the auspices of the Interna
tional Monetary Fund would contribute to the 
re-establishment of more normal trade relation
ship$. The sterling area, by entering such a 
system as a unit, would derive benefit without 
sacrificing any of its existing advantages. 

Contrary to certain assertions, there was no 
simple formula for coping with the complex prob
lem of full employment. The partisans of such 
simple formulre, according to which the continued 
impoverishment of the working classes and the 
deliberate increase by industrial monopolies of the 
reserve of unemployed finally resulted in a severe 
crisis with many millions of permanent unemployed, 
were guilty of distorting facts to suit their theories. 
As a result, whenever signs of the ·impatiently 
awaited recession appeared, especially in the 
United States of America, they had to be exagge
rated to fit in with the preconceived picture. 

The theory of the continued impoverishment 
of the working class was quite untenable so far as 
the United States of America was concerned. 
Between r930 and rg4o, thanks largely to the 
influence of the rapidly growing trade union 
movement, production per man hour and the 
workers' "real" hourly wage had risen by more 
than 40 %- That rise had continued after the war, 
and it could be shown that the increase in the wages 
of unskilled workers was relatively much more 
substantial than that in the wages of the skilled. 

Further evidence of a remarkable increase in 
production in the United States of America was 
to be seen in the comparative figures given in the 
World Economic Report, I948 (E/W.r4), according 
to which her country not only led in volume of 
production, but also showed the highest increase 
over base period figures. That enormous increase 
in production was largely due to the working 
classes. who, with their families, accounted for at 
least rzo millions of the population of the United 
States of America. Further wage increases had 
subsequently done much to re-establish the equi
librium between productivity and consumption, 
and President Truman envisaged a record national 
income of 300,000 million dollars within the next 
few years. 

The assertion that the official figures on unem
ployment concealed a g-million reduction in 
employed could also be shqwn to be baseless. One 
of the proofs given namely, that the population 

regulier, on ne doit pas oublier que la securite des 
investissements dans Ies regions insuffisamment 
developpees serait considerablement accrne si l'on 
eliminait les fluctuations de la demande d'exporta
tions de produits de base en provenance de ces 
regions. 

Pour le moment, les difficultes internationales en 
matiere de change empechent tout accroissement 
des echanges de produits. Or, cet accroissement 
seul permettra d'augmenter la productivite dans 
le monde entier. On peut en voir le resultat dans 
la conclusion d'une serie d'accords commerciaux 
bilateraux et dans la contraction du volume du 
commerce multilateral. Il faudrait voir si la crea
tion d'une chambre de compensation, sous 1' egide 
du Fonds monetaire international, contribuerait a 
retablir des relations commerciales plus normales. 
La zone sterling, en entrant en bloc dans un syste
me de ce genre, en beneficierait sans ,sacrifier 
aucun des avantages qu'elle possede actuellement, 

Contrairement a certaines affirmations, il n'existe 
pas de formule simple pour traiter le probleme 
complexe du plein emploi. Les partisans de.s for
mules simples, selon qui l'appauvrissement continu 
des classes travailleuses et raccroissement du 
nornbre des sans-travail deliberement organise par 
les monopoles industriels ont pour resultat final 
une grave crise et le chomage a titre permanent 
pour des millions de travailleurs, se rendent cou~ 
pables de deformer les faits pour les adapter a 
leurs propres theories. ·n s'ensuit que, partout ·oil 
les signes de la crise impatiemment attendue 
apparaissent, en particulier aux Etats-Unis d'Amb
rique, il devient necessaire d'en exagerer !'impor
tance pour les replacer dans ce tableau inspire par 
des idees precon<;ues. 

La theorie de l'appauvrissement continu de la 
classe ouvriere est tout a fait insoutenable en ce qui 
concerne les Etats-Unis d'Amerique. Entre r930 et 
I940, grace surtout a !'influence du mouvement 
syndical qui devenait sans cesse plus fort, la pro
duction par heure-o~vrier et le salaire horaire 
(( reel)) des travailleurs ont augmente de plus de 
40 %- Cet accroissement s'est poursuivi apres la 
guerre, et on peut demontrer que les salaires des 
ouvriers non specialises se sont accrus dans une 
proportion plus importante que les salaires des 
ouvriers specialises. 

On peut trouver une au.tre . preuve du remar
quable accroissement de la production aux Etats
Unis d' Amerique dans les chiffres compares qu~ 
cite le Rapport sur l' iconomie mondiale, I948 
(E/W.I4), chiffres selon lesquels les Etats-Unis 
tenaient la tete, non seulement en raison du 
volume de leur production estime en valeur absolue, 
mais aussi de l'accroissement de la production par 
rapport aux chiffres des periodes de reference .. 

. Cet enorme accroissement de production est df:t, 
dans une large mesure, aux classes travailleuses 
qui, avec leurs families, representent au moins 
I20 millions d'habitants dans la population des 
Etats-Unis d'Amerique. De nouvelles augmenta
tions de salaires ont par consequent beaucoup 
contribue a retal::>lir I'equilibre entre la producti-' 
vite et la consommation, et le President Truman 
prevoit un revenu national record de 300 milliards 
de dollars au COUTS des quelques annees a venir .. 

On peut egalement demontrer que !'affirmation 
. selon laquelle les chiffres officiels relatifs au nombre 

des chomeurs dissimulent une diminution de 
g millions du nombre des travailleurs employes est 

685 



between 1944and 1948 had increased by 4·7 millions 
seemed to assume that infants started to work 

at birth. The figures produced also ignored the 
fact that a large number of persons who had been 
working during the emergency were no longer in 
the market for jobs and that, in 1944, a large 
section of the available manpower had been 
mobilized in the armed forces. 

She concluded by declaring that the workers 
organized in the American Federation of Labor 
valued fundamental freedoms no less highly than 
their economic security and she therefore urged 
Governments to take those measures which would 
prove to the world, in the words of President 
Truman, "that prosperity and freedom can 
endure together". 

Mr. THORP (United States of America) proposed 
to review a number of interrelated problems, most 
of them originating in the central problem of 
unemployment and economic stability, in the light 
of the report of the Economic and Employment 
Commission (E/1356) and of more recent data 
available. 

On two previous occasions, members of the 
Council had felt compelled to express their disap
pointment at the failure of the Commission to 
come to grips with basic problems and to make 
specific recommendations of a practical nature. 
The fourth session of the Commission, however, 
showed an improvement over prece<;ling sessions. 

Since the United States of America had been the 
subject of a number of remarks by previous 
speakers, he felt no need to apologize for talking 
primarily of conditions in his own country. The 
United States of America had been accused, 
among other things, of seeking to extend her 
control over other countries on behalf of her 
monopolies, which were allegedly interested in the 
impoverishment of the working classes. He did not 
propose to refute such an accusation since there 
was not a single country represented on the Council, 
or any other country, over the economic life of 
which the United States of America or her so-called 
monopolies could be accused of exercising control. 
Indeed, the whole purpose of the Marshall Plan 
was to foster the economic independence of coun
tries and not to extend United States control over 
them. A further charge was that United States 
economy was designed and directed to create a 
state of crisis, and was therefore to be condemned 
as constituting a focus of infection. That accusa
tion would be appropriately dealt with in the 
course of his remarks. 

It should be borne in mind that, in a dynamic 
economy such as that of his own country, normal 
processes of growth, expansion and substitution 
involved continuous adjustment .. Certainly large 
re-adjustments were to be expected at the end of 
the war. The first of those adjustments was the 
change-over from wartime production to produc
tion for the satisfaction of peacetime demands. 
The second was the adjustment from the levels 
reflecting the exceptional demands for peacetime 
goods in the immediate post-war period to the 

sans fondement. Une des preuves donnees, a savoir 
que la population, entre 1944 et 1948, a augmente 
de 4-7oo.ooo individus, semble fondee sur la sup
position que les enfants commencent a travailler 
des la naissance. Les chiffres mis en avant ont ete 
etablis sans qu'il soit tenu compte du fait qu'un 
grand nombre d'individus, qui · avaient travaille 
pendant la periode ou. le besoin de main-d' reuvre 
etait critique, se sont retires du marche de Ia 
main-d'reuvre, et qu'en 1944 une partie importante 
de Ia main-d'reuvre disponible etait mobilisee 
dans les forces armees. 

La consultante de la Federation americaine du 
· travail termine en declarant. que les travailleurs 

organises au sein de la Federation americaine du 
travail n'apprecient .pas moins leurs libertes fonda-

: mentales que leur securite economique ; elle invite 
done de fa<;on pressante les Gouvernements a 
prendre les mesures qui prouveront au monde, 
selon les termes du President Truman, que <c la 
prosperite et la liberte ne sont pas incompatibles>>. 

M. THORP (Etats-Uriis d'Amerique) se propose de 
passer en revue, a la lumiere du rapport de la 
Commission des questions economiques et de l'em
ploi (E/1356), et d'apres des donnees plus recentes 
maintenant disponibles, un certain nombre de 
problemes interdependants, dont la plupart sont 
nes du probleme central du ch6mage et de la sta
bilite economique. 

A deux reprises deja, des membres du Conseil 
ont cru devoir exprimer leur deception de constater 
que la Commission n'avait pas reussi a s'attaquer 
aux questions essentielles, ni a faire des recomman
dations precises d'ordre pratique. La quatrieme 
session de la Commission temoigne toutefois d'un 
progres par rapport aux sessions precedentes. 

Les Etats-Unis d'Amerique ayant fait l'objet 
de nombreuses remarques de la part de certains 
orateurs, M. Thorp n'a pas besoin de s'excuser de 
parler surtout de la situation de son propre pays. 
Les Etats-Unis ont ete accuses, entre autres choses, 
de chercher a etendre leur mainmise sur d'autres 
pays, dans !'interet de leurs monopoles qui, pre
tend-on, sont interesses a l'appauvrissement des 
classes laborieuses. L'orateur n'a pas !'intention 
de refuter une telle accusation, puisqu'il n'y a pas 
un seul pays siegeant au Conseil, ni en fait aucun 
autre pays, sur la vie economique duquel on puisse 
accuser les Etats-Unis d'Amerique, ou leurs pre-· 
tendus monopoles, d'exercer le moindre contr6le. 
En verite, le Plan Marshall tout entier a pour but 
de favoliser l'independance economique des autres 
pays et non pas de les soumettre au controle des 
Etats-Unis. On accuse aussi l'economie des Etats
Unis d'avoir pour but de creer un etat de crise et 
on la condamne en lui reprochant d'etre un foyer 
d'infection. Cette accusation sera examinee comme 
il convient au cours de son expose. 

Il ne faut pas oublier que, dans une economie 
dynamique comme celle de son pays, les processus 
normaux de croissance, d'expansion et de rempla
cement ne peuvent suivre leur cours qu'au prix 
d'adaptations continuelles. I1 fallait s'attendre a 
des readaptations importantes ala fin de laguerre. 
Le premier de ces amenagements a ete le passage 
de la production du temps de guerre a la produc
tion du temps de paix. Le second a ete le pas
sage des niveaux de production qui correspon
daient au volume exceptionnel de la demande de 

686 



more normal production levels of a normal peace
time economy. No economy;in the world; whether 
based on free enterprise or on planned collectivism, 
had escaped such disturbances. · 

His country, having satisfied the extraordinary 
pent-up demand accumulated during the war 
period, had experienced a certain slackening in 
some branches ·of production. The figures for the 
gross national product, which offered the most 
comprehensive iridex of production, showed, after 
correction for changes in the price level, a decline 
of about I Y2 % between the second half of 1948 
and the first half of 1949. Total civilian employ
ment had dropped from 6r.6 millions in July 1948 
to 59·7 millions in July 1949. Nevertheless, total 
output and employment still remained at a very 
high level. Furthermore, though, in some lines of 
activity, the decline was serious, in others there 
had been little or no falling off. 

When current figures were examined inrelation 
to the long-term trends of the pre-war period, 
existing levels of produCtion and employment 
appeared to be very high indeed, and far higher 
than would have been thought possible in 1939. 
For example, though the general index of indus
trial production in June 1949 had been 1:3 %lower 
than at the post-war peak in the autumn of 1948, it 
had been no less than 55 % higher than in 1939. 
Likewise unemployment, higher than in 1948, 
nevertheless showed a decrease of 5-7 millions 
over the monthly average in 1939. Civilian 
employment, 1.7 millions less in June 1949 than 
in June 1948, was almost 14 millions more than the 
monthly average of ten years ago. 

The drop in production and in employment in 
industry was largely the result of an inventory 
adjustment as the end of the level of activity 
created by the pent-up demand accumulated 
during the war period was approached, and 
reflected a change in balance between buyers and 
sellers. When consumers had shown signs of unwil
lingness to buy everything produced, regardless of 

. price, retailers had limited their orders and manu-
facturers had curtailed production. That process 
was, however, quite uneven and some industries, 
such as the automobile and building industries, 
were still operating at very high levels, while the 
shoe and textile industries had experienced a 
substantial decline. Recent figures showed that, 
even in the latter industries the situation had 
begun to improve. 

The inventory adjustment had been accompanied 
by a price readjustment on a broad front during 
the first half of 1949, which had resulted in a 
diminished ·demand for, and lowered prices of 
raw materials both of domestic and foreign origin. 
At the same time, increased world supplies had 
caused a downward trend in the prices of farm 
products. Price falls for some commodities, parti
cularly foodstuffs, non-ferrous metals, chemicals and 
leather, had been sharp, and had caused hardship 

marchandises produites en temps de paix, dans Ta 
periode qui a suivi immediatement la gilerre, aux 
niveaux de production plus normaux d'une econo
mie normale de temps de paix. Aucune economie 
au monde, qu'elle repose sur la libre entreprise 
ou sur le collectivisme dirige, n'a echappe a ces 
perturbations. 

Les Etats-Unis, une fois satisfaite la demande 
· accumulee pendant la periode de guerre, out connu 
un certain ralentissement dans quelques branches 
de la production. Les chiffres de la production 
nationale brute, qui constituent l'indice le plus 
complet de la production, accusent, apres ajuste
ment pour que compte soit tenu des modifications 
du niveau des prix, un flechissement d'environ 
r¥2%, entre le second semestre de 1948 et le pre
mier semestre de 1949. Le total des civils employes 
est tombe de 6r.6oo.ooo en juillet 1948 a 59-700.000 
en juillet 1949. Neanmoins, la production totale et 
l'emploi· restent a un niveau tres eleve. De plus, 
bien que dans certaines branches d'activite le 
flechissement soit serieux, dans d'autres branches 
il ne s'est produit qu'un leger flechissement. 

Si 1' on examine les chiffres actuels, dans leur rap
port avec les tendances ultimes de la periode 
d'avaht guerre, les niveaux actuels de la produc
tion et de l'emploi semblent en verite tres eleves, 
beaucoup plus eleves qu'on ne l'aurait cru possible 
en 1939. Par exemple, bien que l'indice general de 
la production industrielle en juin 1949 ait ete de 
13 % inferieur a la pointe d'apres guerre, atteinte 
a l'automne de 1948, il etait encore alors de 55 % 
plus eleve qu'en 1939. De meme le chomage; plus 
ele~e niaintenant qu'en 1948, accuse cependant 
une diminution de 5-700.000 par rapport a la 
moyenne mensuelle de 1939. Le nombre de travail
leurs civils employes, qui etait en juin 1949 inferieur 
de I.JOO.OOO ace qu'il etait en juin 1948, est presque 
superieur de 14 millions a la moyenne mensuelle 
d'il y a dix ans. 

La contraction du volume de la production et de 
1' emploi dans l'industrie est en grande partie due 
a l'ajustement des stocks au volume de la demande, 
l'activite economique devant bientot tomber 
au-dessous du niveau anormalement eleve que lui 
avait donne la demande accumulee des annees de 
guerre. En fait, cette contraction indique que le 
rapport existant entre les acheteurs et les vendeurs 
a change. Lorsque les consommateurs out montre 
qu'ils n'etaient pas disposes a acheter tout ce qui 
etait produit sans s'inquieter du prix, le commerce 
de detail a restreint ses commandes et les industriels 
out freine la production. Ce processus toutefois ne 
joue pas partout de la meme fa<;on. Certaines 
industries, telles que l'industrie automobile et celle 
du batiment, connaissent encore un niveau de 
production tres eleve, tandis que l'industrie de la 
chaussure et les industries textiles out nettement 
flechi. Des chiffres recents montrent que, meme 
dans ce dernier groupe d'industries, la situation 
commence a s'ameliorer. 

L'ajustement des stocks a ete accompagne d'un 
rajustement general des prix pendant le premier 
semestre de 1949, qui a abouti a une diminution 
de la demande de matieres premieres d' origine 
nationale et etrangere, ainsi qu'a un abaissement 
de leurs prix. En meme temps, l'accroissement 
des approvisionnements mondiaux a provoque une 
tendance a la baisse des produits agricoles. La 
chute des prix de certains produits de base, en 
particulier des. matieres alimentaires, des metaux 

687 



to producers in some countries; but, on the whole, 
the reduction in wholesale prices during the first 
half of 1949 had been moderate and orderly. Such 
a decline merely mark~d the end of the post-war 
inflationary process and a movement towards 
peacetime price levels. Prices of consumer goods 
in the United States of America had not yet fully 
reflected the downward trend in wholesale prices. 

There were, moreover, a number of stabilizing 
factors in the. economy. For instance, total per
sonal incomes in the first half of 1949 had been 
only slightly lower than in the second half of 1948, 
and had been higher tban in the first half of 1948. 
Personal expenditures for consumption showed a 
similar trend, and, since the figures did not reflect 
the slightly increased. purchasing . power of the 
dollar, they actually understated tbe strength of 
consumer purchasingJpower. 

The high level of employment maintained in 
non-industrial activities, agriculture and private 
and public service, which had in some cases actually 
registered an increase, was another indication that 
there were no symptoms of a deflationary spiral 
which in some previous periods had led to de
pression and mass unemployment. 

Furthermore, many of the more conspicuous 
causes of the development of past deflationary 
spirals were, at the moment, absent. There was 
no excessive speculation in commodities or securi
ties, no over-expansion of any form of credit, no 
excessive speculation in land, but, on the contrary, 
a very marked reduction in agricultural indebt
edness. Moreover, enterprises and, to. some 
extent, State and local governments had emerged 
from the war ... period in a liquid financial position. 

The many social, economic and financial reforms 
enacted since the early 193o's had brought renewed 
stability to the economy of his country. Among 
them should be mentioned an extensive unemploy
ment insurance system, the assistance ·given to 
war veterans, the extensive scale of social security 
benefits, the new methods of supporting farm 
prices, various safeguards against speculation and 
financial crises, public works and housing pro
grammes. 

While some further decline in business activity 
might occur during the next few months, indications 
were that it would continue to be of a partial 
character and would be. contained within the 
limits of an orderly readjustment owing to the 
elements of basic strength in the United States 
economy. 

The analysis of the facts of the economic outlook 
in the United States of America gave no reason 
for alarm. On the other hand, there was no call 
for complacency, and the President of the United 
States, recognizing the responsibility of the Govern
ment in that matter, had initiated a programme 
of precautionary measures, including certain tax 

non ferreux, des produits chimiques et du cuir, 
a ete brutale et a impose des sacrifices aux pro
ducteurs de certains pays ; mais, dans l'ensemble, 
la diminution des pJjx de gros, au cours du premier 
semestre de 1949, a ete moderee et reguliere. Ce 
flechissement a simplement marque la fin du 
processus inflationniste d'apres guerre et une 
evolution vers des niveaux de prix du temps de 
paix. Le prix des biens de consommation aux 
Etats-Unis d' Amerique ne reflete pas encore comple
tement la ten dance a la . baisse des prix de gros. 

L' economie americaine possede toutefois un 
certain nombre de facteurs de stabilisation. Par 
exemple, le total des revenus personnels, pendant 
le premier semestre de 1949, n'a ete que de tres 
peu inferieur a celui du second semestre de 1948 
et a ete plus eleve que celui du premier semestre 
de 1948. Les depenses portant sur les biens per
sonnels de consommation accusent nne tendance 
analogue, et comme ces chiffres ne refletent pas 
la Iegere augmentation du pouvoir d'achat du 
dollar, il faudrait en fait les grossir pour se faire 
nne idee juste du pouvoir d'achat des consom
mateurs. 

Le niveau eleve de l'emploi maintenu dans les 
activites non industrielles, dans !'agriculture, au 
service des particuliers ou dans les services publics 
(dans certains cas ce niveau est plus eleve qu'aupa
ravant), est une nouvelle preuve que rien n'annonce 
un mouvement deflationniste ineluctable, comme 
ceux qui, jadis, ont conduit au marasme econo
mique et au chomage generalise. 

De plus, quelques-unes des causes les plus 
evidentes du developpement des spirales deflation
nistes d'autrefois sont, pour le moment, absentes. 
Il n'y a pas de speculation exageree sur les produits 
essentiels ni sur les valeurs, pas d'elargissement 
exagere des formes diverses du credit, pas de 
speculation excessive sur la terre, mais au con
traire nne reduction marquee de l'endettement 
des agriculteurs. De plus, les entreprises, et dans 
nne certaine mesure les Gouvernements des 
Etats et les municipalites, sont sortis de la periode 
de guerre avec un acti£. 

Les nombreuses reformes sociales, economiques 
et financieres votees des le debut des annees 
1930-1939, ont apporte un regain de stabi
lite a l'economie des Etats-Unis. Parmi ces refor
mes, i1 convient de mentionner un systeme tres 
etendu d'assurance contre le ch6mage, l'aide 
donnee aux anciens combattants, le bareme gene
:r:eux des prestations accordees au titre de la 
securite sociale, les nouvelles mesures destinees a 
soutenir · les prix agricoles, diverses mesures de 
protection contre la speculation et les crises 
financieres, et des programmes de .travaux publics 
et de construction de logements. 

Bien qu'un nouveau flechissement de l'activite 
economique puisse se ptoduire au cours des pro
chains mois, il semble bien que ce flechissement 
doive continuer a etre partiel et qu'il sera maintenu 
dans les limites d'un ajustement regulier, grace 
aux facteurs d' equilibre et de sante que possede 
l'economie des Etats-Unis. 

L'analyse des faits relatifs aux perspectives 
economiques des Etats-Unis d' Amerique ne donne 
lieu a aucune inquietude. D'autre part, une com
plaisance beate n'est pas de mise, et le President 
des Etats-Unis, reconnaissant Ia responsabilite du 
Gouvernement dans ce domairie, a mis a l'etude 
un programme de mesures preventives comprenant 

688 



changes, an easing of credit facilities, an increase 
of minimum wages, a strengthening of farm 
support, an extension of the social security pro
gramme and preparations for an accelerated public 
works programme. The President has also reite
rated his previous proposals for the strengthening 
of world trade, for continuing assistance to the 
recovery Of Western Europe and for increasing 
assistance for the economic development of under
developed areas. 

He regretted that the document submitted by 
the World Federation of Trade Unions (E/1332/ 
Add.1) buried a modicum of generally acceptable 
statements and proposals under a mass of inaccu
racies and misrepresentations. It was nonsense 
to affirm that the workers' standard of living had 
not improved in any way since the war, or to 
identify every increase in productivity with 
intensified exploitation of the worker. It was 
not good logic to assert, on the one hand, that 
Governments in capitalistic countries wanted to 
raise the spectre of unemployment high, and to 
claim on the other hand that the same Governments 
doctored the statistics so as to make unemployment 
appear low. · It was also inconsistent to blame 
"the obstacles in the way of development of free 
trade relations" for the decline in economic activity 
and then proceed on other pages to describe as 
iniquities the purchase of United States products 
by Turkey, Belgium, France, etc. It was, above 
all, very strange to assert that the crisis was 
bound to deepen and that the impoverishment of 
the workers was "inevitable" and, at the same 
time, to submit specific proposals for improving 
the situation. 

In view of the full publicity given to the details 
of economic activity in his country, it was regret
table that a non-governmental organization, ad
mitted by the Council to consultative status, 
should have submitted a statement which mis
represented so many readily ascertainable facts. 

In an effort to demonstrate that his country had 
a number of unacknowledged unemployed, the 
World Federation of Trade Unions had seen fit 
to compare the seasonally low period of January 
1948 with the seasonally high period of July 1944, 
a statistical error which alone would account for 
a variation of between 3 and 4 million workers, 
many of whom spent the winter months at their 
studies. 

The document also chose to compare a wartime 
period, in which over 10 million people had been 
in the armed forces (including in the total labour 
force figures), with a peacetime period. For 
obvious reasons the total labour force had dropped 
sharply after the war, when millions of "extra" 
workers returned either to school, to their homes 
or to retirement. 

It would therefore appear that the non-govern
mental organization in question was unable to 
·comprehend the freedom of choice which had 
resulted in millions flocking into the labour market 
during the war and leaving it afterwards of their 
own volition, or the fact that, in some economies, 

certci.ins amenagements d'impOts, l'octroi plus 
facile de credits, !'elevation du taux minimum 
des salaires, un renforcement de l'ci.ide donnee a 
!'agriculture, un elargissement du programme de 
securite sociale, et la mise en train d'un programme 
accelere de travaux publics. Le President a renou
vele ses propositions anterieures en faveur du 
developpement du commerce mondial, de la 
continuation de l'ci.ide apportee au relevement de 
l'Europe occidentale, et d'une assistance accrue 
en faveur du developpement economique des 
regions insuffisamment developpees. 

Le representant des Etats-Unis regrette que le 
document presente par la Federation syndicale 
mondiale (Ej1332jAdd.1) enterre un petit nombre 
de declarations et de propositions acceptables 
dans !'ensemble sous une masse d'inexacti
tudes et de deformations. Il est absurde d'affir
mer que le niveau d'existence des travailleurs 
ne se soit en aucune fa<;on ameliore depuis 
la guerre, ou d'assimiler tout accroissement de la 
productivite a une exploitation intensifiee de 
l'ouvrier. Il n'est pas de .bonne. logique d'affirmet, 
d'une part, que les Gouvernements des pays capi
talistes desirent brandir le spectre du ch6mage, 
et, d'autre part, de pretendre que les memes 
Gouvernements truquent les statistiques pour 
reduire les chiffres du ch6mage. Il est egalement 
contradictoire de rendre « les obstacles au deve
loppement de libres relations commerciales n res
ponsables du flechissement de l'activite econo
mique, et, a d'autres pages, de qualifier d'inique 
l'achat de produits en provenance des Etats-Unis 
par la Turquie, la Belgique, la France, etc. Par
dessus tout, il est tres etrange d'a:ffirmer que la 
crise s'aggravera necessairement et que l'appau
vrissement des travailleurs est «inevitable JJ, et 
de soumettre en meme temps des propositions 
precises pour ameliorer la situation. 

En raison de la publicite complete qui est faite 
aux Etats-Unis a tous les aspects de l'activite 
economique, il est. regrettable qu'une organisation 
'non gouvernementale, a laquelle le Conseil a 
accorde le statut consultatif, ait presente un 
expose qui deforme tant de faits facilement veri
fiables. 

Pour demontrer qu'aux Etats-Unis beaucoup de 
ch6meurs ne sont pas reconnus comme tels, la 
Federation syndicale mondiale a juge bon de 
comparer janvier 1948, periode ou l'activite etait 
plus faible en raison d'un flechissement saisonnier, 
a juillet 1944, periode de forte activite economique. 
C'est la une erreur de statistique qui suffirait a 
expliquer une difference de 3 a 4 millions de 
travailleurs, dont beaucoup ont consacre les mois 
d'hiver a leurs etudes. . 

Dans ce document, l'on a aussi, de fa<;on arbi
traire, compare une periode de temps de guerre, 
oil il y avait plus de dix millions de personnes 
dans les forces armees, a une periode de paix. 
Pour des raisons evidentE!s, l'effectif total de la 
main-d'reuvre a fiechi brusquement apr~s la 
guerre, lorsque des niilliohs de travailleurs << auxi
liaires )) sont retournes a leurs etudes ou dans leurs 
foyers, ou ont pris leur retraite. 

Il semble done que !'organisation non gouverne
mentale en question soit incapable de comprendre 
la liberte de choix qui a permis a des millions de 
personnes de se present~r en masse sur le marche 
du travail pendant laguerre et dele quitter ensuite 
de leur plein gre, et qu'elle soit incapable de . 

689 

44 



family incomes were sufficiently high to make it 
unnecessary for every member over the age of 
14 to earn his own .living. 

Examination of the published definitions of the 
concepts used by the United States Bureau of 
the Census would show that, with the exception 
of invalids, who were, in any case, classified as 
outside the labour force, all the categories which , 
the World •Federation of Trade Unions· alleged 
were excluded from unemployment statistics were, 
in fact, definitely included. 

Although partially employed persons were in
cluded with the employed if actually occupied at 
the time of the survey, the Census Bureau pub
lished figures each month showing detailed distri
bution of hours for those at work in agriculture and 
non-agriculture industries, so that changes in the 
numbers working full time and part time could 
be readily seen. Moreover, periodic studies made 
of part-time work showed that most persons who 
engaged in it did so voluntarily or because other 
responsibilities prevented them from accepting 
full-time employment. 

It was likewise absurd to compare the average 
weekly earnings of workers in 1948 with those of 
1945, when many workers had been receiving 
large sums in overtime pay as a result of extremely 
long hours devoted to the war effort. In point 
of fact, cash and real hourly earnings had actually 
increased from 1945 to mid-1949 and the moderate 
decline in real earnings per week was due to the 
lesser amounts of ·overtime worked. 

I{e then quoted a series of figures of real weekly 
earnings for the years 1919, 1939 and 1945 and 
for the month of June 1949. to demonstrate the' 
extraordinary improvement achieved in the 
workers' standard of living over that period. 

The fundamental error of the report submitted 
by the Federation was that it attempted to apply 
to modern society an approach more than 100 
years old. In the United States of America the 
workers were not suffering from increased misery. 
Their conditions of life had been vastly improved 
by the efforts of the trades unions, by protective 
legislation and, in particular, by increases in 
productivity, in which workers and employers felt 
an identity of interest. 

The class divisions of the older countries in the 
19th century had never been characteristic of the 
United States of America, a society which had 
evolved in accordance with the opportunities of 
American life. Ownership had become more 
widely distributed, profits being shared by workers 
and salaried employees by means of ownership 
of corporate securities. The children of workers 
had moved into manag~rial and ownership po
sitions, and the middle-class had increased in 
numbers and influence. 

Development of the economy, democratic poli
tical legislation, and collective bargaining in 
industry had led to a type of society not foreseen 

com prendre que, dans certaines economies, le revenu 
familial est assez e!eve pour qu'il ne soit pas neces
saire a tous les membres de la famille ages de plus 
de I4 ans de gagner leur vie. 

A examiner les definitions statistiques qu'utilise 
le cc United States Bureau of the Census)), et qui 
figurent dans ses publications, on s'apenc<oit qu'a 
!'exception des personnes invalides, qui de toute 
fac;on n' ont pas ete classees parmi les travailleurs, 
toutes les autres categories de personnes que la 
Federation syndicale mondiale pretend etre exclues 
des statistiques de chomage y sont, en fait, bien 
comprises. 

Bien que les personnes ayant un emploi a horaire 
reduit soient rangees dans la meme rub rique que les 
autres travailleurs, des lors qu'elles occupent effecti
vement un emploi au moment du recensement, le 
Census Bureau publie chaque mois des statistiques 
montrant dans le detail la repartition des heures 
de travail fournies dans !'agriculture et dans les 
autres secteurs de l'economie, si bien que l'on voit 
d'un coup d'o:::il quels changements ont subi le 
nombre de travailleurs a horaire normal et le 
nombre d'employes a horaire reduit. Des enquetes 
periodiques sur la situation des travailleurs de 
la seconde categorie montrent que, pour la plupart 
d'entre eux, le choix de cette forme de travail est 
volontaire, ou encore s'explique par le fait qu'en 
raison d'autres obligations il ne leur est pas possible 
d'accepter un emploi a horaire normal. 

11 est egalement absurde de comparer les gains 
hebdomadaires moyens des travailleurs en 1948 
avec ceux de 1945. epoque ou beaucoup d'entre eux 
touchaient des sommes importantes pour les heures 
suppl!~mentaires tres nombreuses fournies dans 
I' interet de 1' effort de guerre. En fait, les salaires 
horaires bruts et reels ont augmente depuis 1945 jus
qu'au milieu de 1949, et s'il y a eu une faible diminu
tion du salaire hebdomadaire reel, elle s' explique par 
une reduction des heures supplementaires fournies. 

L'orateur cite ensuite un certain nombre de 
chiffres pour les salaires hebdomadaires reels en 
1919, 1939, 1945, ainsi qu'au mois de juin 1949, 
afin de montrer de quelle amelioration extra
ordinaire de leur niveau de vie les travailleurs 
ont pu beneficier au cours de cette periode. 

L'erreur fondamentale qu'on releve dans le 
rapport de la Federation syndicale mondiale, 
c'est qu'il tente d'interpreter !'evolution de la 
societe moderne a !'aide d'une doctrine vieille de 
plus d'un sitkle. Aux Etats-Unis, les travailleurs 
ne souffrent pas d'une misere toujours plus grande. 
Leurs conditions d'existence se sont largement 
ameliorees grace a ·ractivite des syndicats, grace 
a la legislation sociale, et surtout grace a !'augmen
tation de la productivite a laquelleles travailleurs 
et les employeurs ont egalement interet. 

Les Etats-Unis d'Amerique n'ont jamais connu 
les distinctions de classe qu'ont connues au 
XIxe siecle les pays plus anciens. Chez eux, la 
societe s'est developpee conformement aux possi
bilites offertes par la vie americaine. La propriete 
a ete plus largement repartie, les travailleurs et 
les employes salaries qui possedent des actions 
participant aux benefices. Les enfants des travail
leurs ont accede a des situations de directeurs et de 
proprietaires ; !'importance et !'influence des clas
ses moyennes ont augmente. · 

Le developpement de 1' economie, une legislation 
politique democratique et le systeme des contrats 
collectifs dans l'industrie ont cree un type de 

690 



by the political economists of the rgth century, 
a society in which neither political nor economic 
power was so concentrated as to be susceptible .of 
manipulation by a few '~monopolists", a society of 
diversity, in which the roots of political and 
economic decision spread through all regions of 
the country and all layers of society. The real 
picture of American society was given, not so 
much by 19th century classics, but by the minutes 
of the meetings of the American trade unions and 
farmers' federations, or by the returns of the 
presidential elections of the last two decades. 

Economic forces had been tempered by com
munity action through Government agency where 
that had seemed called for. The dangers of 
impoverishment and economic crisis had been 
countered by the introduction of measures of 
social security, minimum wage legislation, streng
thening of the banking and deposit systems against 
shocks, regulation of speculation, support of 
·agricultural prices, development of housing, power, 
irrigation, and reclamation projects and conser
vation of natural resources. In short, the United 
States society was continually evolving, and no 
longer fitted into the rigid schemes of rgth century 
classifications. 

At the same time he would not pretend that 
the United States of America was Utopia. Variety 
of character and freedom of expression made it 
easy to find shortcomings to criticize, and the 
American people were themselves the first to 
indulge in that criticism, which they considered 
one of the factors of progress. 

With reference to the report of the Economic 
and Employment Commission (E/1356), he stated 
that the United States delegation supported the 
proposal that the Sub-Commissions on Economic 
Development and on Economic Stability be 
abolished, for the reasons given . in the report. 
It was also in favour of the proposals that the 
Commission's terms of reference remain unchanged 
and that experts be appointed ·by the Secretary
General from time to time for specific tasks, to 
report to the Commission in their own name. He 
felt that such an arrangement would enable the 
Commission to call on qualified assistance, would 
provide greater flexibility in methods of con
sultation, and would involve only slight additional 
expense, since the greater part of the cost could 
be met out of the savings effected by the abolition 
of the two sub-commissions. 

He also supported the proposal that the Com
mission should meet shortly before .one of the 
Council's sessions, even if that necessitated waiving 
the six-week rule; the arrangement, however, 
should not be rigid. 

As regards, however, the recommendations that 
the Commission be made responsible for reviewing 
certain reports intended for submission to the 
Council, and that liaison machinery be set up 
between the Commission and the Secretariat 
between sessions, his delegation was unable to 
support them, inasmuch as the adoption of the 
first recommendation would mean that the work 

societe que les economistes politiques du xrxe 
siecle n'avaient pas prevu, et ou le pouvoir poli
tique non plus que le pouvoir economique ne se 
concentre de maniere a devenir le « monopole de 
quelques-uns )), nne societe faite d'elements varies 
et ou la responsabilite dans le domaine economique 
et social s' etend a toutes les parties du pays et 
a toutes les couches sociales. Ce n'est pas tant 
dans les classiques du xrxe. siecle qu'il faut 
chercher un tableau fidele de la societe americaine, 
mais dans les proces-verbaux des reunions de 
syndicats et de federations agricoles, ou dans la 
repartition des voix aux elections presidentielles 
des deux dernieres decennies. 

· Urie action commune exercee par l'interme
diaire du Gouvernement a freine les.forces econo
miques la ou cela a paru necessaire. On a pare 
aux dangers de l'appauvrissement et d'une · crise 
economique en recourant a des mesures de securite 
sociale, a la legislation concernant le salaire mini
mum, a la consolidation des systemes bancaires 
et de depot, les mettant a l'abri des secousses 
financieres, en reglementant Ia speculation, en 
soutenant les prix agricoles, en mettant a execu
tion des projets de construction de logements, de 
production d'energie electrique, d'irrigation et de 
mise en valeur des terres, et des travaux destines 
a preserver les ressources naturelles. Bref, aux 
Etats-Unis, la societe evolue constamment et ne 
rentre plus dans les cadres rigides des systemes 
du xrxe siecle. 

Mais 1' orateur · ne vent pas pretendre que pour 
autant 1' Amerique est nne terre d'utopie. Le 
caractere varie du pays et Ia liberte de parole 
permettent la decouverte de nombreux abus a 
critiquer, et les A:mericains sont les premiers a se 
permetti"e cette critique, ou ils voient un des fac
teurs du progres social. 

Quant au rapport de la Commission des questions 
economiques et de l'emploi (E/1356), M. Thorp 
declare que la delegation des Etats-Unis appuie 
la proposition de supprimer les Sons-Commissions 
du developpement economique et de la stabilite 
economique pour les raisons qui figurent dans le 
rapport. Elle appuie egalenient les propositions 
tendant a laisser sans changement le mandat ·de 
Ia Commission et a demander au Secretaire general 
de designer de temps en temps, pour des taches 
determinees, des experts qui fassent rapport a la 
Commission en leur propre nom. II a !'impression 
que cette disposition assurerait a la Commission 
nne collaboration qualifiee, donnerait une plus 
grande souplesse aux methodes de consultation 
tout en n'entrainant qu'un Ieger supplement de 
depenses, les economies realisees par la suppres
sion des deux sous~commissions permettant de 
faire face a la plus grande partie des frais. 

M. Thorp appuie egalement la proposition 
prevoyant nne reunion de la Commission tres pen 
de temps avant l'une des sessions du Conseil, 
diU-on pour cela deroger a Ia regle des six semaines; 
toutefois cet arrangement ne devrait pas etre trop 
absolu. 

Au contraire, la delegation des Etats-Unis ne 
saurait appuyer les recommandations tendant a 
charger la Commission de passer en revue certains 
rapports destines au Conseil et a instituer entre les 
sessions un mecanisme de liaison entre ·la Commis
sion et le Secretariat, car l'adoption de la premiere 
de ces recommandations n'aurait pour effet que de 
doubler inutilement le travail du Comite economi-

691 



of the Economic Committee would be duplicated 
or superseded, whereas the second might consti
tute potential supervision over or pressure on the 
work of the Secretariat. 

The major questions on which the Commission 
proposed to concentrate at its next session -
namely, obstacles to industrialization of under
developed countries and territories and measures 
for overcoming them, and the problem of unem
ployment, were obviously of great importance, 
and it was better that the Commission should 
focus its attention on them rather than disperse 
its efforts over a variety of subjects. 

He was hopeful that the Economic and Em
ployment Commission could overcome the diffi
culties it had encountered in its work and avail 
itself of the opportunities afforded by its terms 
of reference ; by so doing it would provide the 
Council with objective analyses of long-range 
problems of world economic policy, which would 
assist the Council in relating current work to 
long-term objectives. 

Mr. SKOROBOGATY (Byelorussian Soviet Socia
list Republic) said that the fact that the Economic 
and Social Council was discussing the problem of 
unemployment was proof of its increase in capitalist 
countries, an increase which was in itself a threat 
to the welfare of the wide masses of humanity, to 
whom the United Nations owed the most solemn 
obligations. 

The nature of the problem had developed consi
derably during the last few months, revealing 
itself not only in unemployment and semi-employ
ment, but in restriction of production, an increase 
in the cost of living, and a reduction of real wages. 
Those were accompanied by a growing conscious
ness of the problem, shared by Press, public opinion, 
and the United Nations itself. It was not therefore 
surprising that the Council should now be discussing 
it; but discussion must take account of the essential 
nature of the capitalist system of production, a 
system which, as the World Economic Report, I948, 
showed, was going through a difficult and significant 
crisis. 

Production in most capitalist countries had not 
yet regained the .1937 level, nor was it expected 
that even the unsatisfactory rate of development 
in 1948 could be maintained in the future. A 
slowing-down was apparent in certain industries, 
which were finding difficulty in disposing of their 
products, and competition between the capitalist 
States in their fight for sources of raw materials 
and for world markets was making the struggle 
for world domination more acute. Proof of the 
well-known fact that unemployment was the inevit
able result of capitalist production was afforded by 
the Secretary-General's report, which showed that 
unemployment was becoming more acute and more 
widespread. 

In the United States of America there had been 
a rise of 70% in unemployment between the last 
quarter of 1948 and the first quarter of 1949, and, 
according. to the United States .Department of 
Commerce, as reported in the· London Times, un
employment had risen by July 1949 to 4,095,000, 
a figure which showed an increase of.370,ooo over 

que, alors que la ·seconde ·pourrait mener a exercer 
sur les travaux du Secretariat une surveillance ou 
une pression. 

Nul ne pense a nier !'importance des principaux 
problemes a l'etude desquels la Commission se 
propose de s'attacher au cours de sa prochaine 
session, a savoir les obstacles a !'industrialisation 
des pays et des territoires insuffisamment develop
pes, et les mesures propres a: les surmonter, ainsi 
que le probleme du ch6mage, et il est preferable 
que la Commission leur consacre toute son attention 
plut6t que de disposer ses efforts sur toute une 
serie de sujets. 

M. Thorp a l'espoir que la Commission des 
questions economiques et de l'emploi saura faire 
face aux difficultes qu'elle a rencontrees au cours de 
son travail et profiter des occasions que lui offre 
son mandat ; ce faisant, elle fournira au Conseil des 
etudes objectives sur les problemes a long terme de 
l'economie mondiale, etudes qui aideront le Conseil 
a faire servir son activite ordinaire ala poursuite de 
ses buts ultimes. 

Selon M. SKOROBOGATY (Republique socialiste 
sovietique de Bielorussie), le fait meme que le 
Conseil economique et social examine le probleme 
du chomage prouve que le chomage grandit dans 
les pays capitalistes, et cet accroissement constitue 
une menace pour le bien-etre des grandes masses de 
l'humanite envers lesquelles !'Organisation des 
Nations Unies a pris les engagements les plus 
solennels. 

La nature du probleme a beaucoup change au 
cours des quelques derniers mois, comme l'indiquent 
non seulement le chomage et le semi-chomage, 
mais une reduction de la production, une augmen
tation du coftt de la vie et un abaissement des 
salaires reels. Il faut ajouter a ces signes une cons
cience toujours plus vive du probleme, que parta~ 
gent la presse, !'opinion publique et !'Organisation 
des. Nations Unies elle-meme. Des lors, il n'est pas 
surprenant que le Conseil soit en train d'en deli
berer ; mais cette deliberation doit tenir compte du 
caractere essentiel du systeme de production 
capitaliste. Or ce systeme, comme l'a montre le 
Rapport sur l'iconomie mondiale, I948, traverse une 
crise di:fficile et significative. 

Dans la plupart des pays capitalistes, la produc
tion n'a pas encore retrouve son niveau de 1937, et 
on ne s'attend meme pas a pouvoir maintenir a 
l'avenir le taux insatisfaisant de developpement de 
l'annee 1948. On constate un ralentissement de la 
production dans certaines industries qui eprouvent 
des difficultes a ecouler leurs produits, et la concur
rence entre les Etats capitalistes dans leur .lutte 
pour la possession des sources de matieres premieres 
et des marches mondiaux rend encore plus aigue 
la competition pour la domination du monde. Le 
rapport du Secretaire general, qui montre que le 
chomage ne fait que devenir plus aigu et s'etendre, 
donne la preuve de ce fait bien connu que le cho
mage est le resultat inevitable du systeme capita
liste de production. 

Aux Etats-Unis d'Amerique, le ch6mage a aug
mente de 70 % entre le dernier trimestre de 1948 
et le premier trimestre de 1949, et, si l'on en croit 
les statistiques du Departement du Commerce · des 
Etats-Unis telles qu'elles etaient reproduites dans 
le Times de Londres, en juillet de cette annee, le 
nombre des chomeurs s'est eleve a 4·095.000, soit 

692 



the preceding month, and one of 1,868,ooo over 
July 1948. The data given in the World Economic 
Report were in fact official data, which had been 
made public ; but they failed to take into account 
the number of semi-employed, which, in the United 
States of America alone, amounted to several 
millions. Other official statistics showed that, 
during the first quarter of 1949, there had been 
2,ooo,ooo unemployed in Italy, more than r,ooo,ooo 
in the Western Zones of Germany, and 400,0QO in 
England ; that in Belgium in March I949, 12 % of 
all workers had been unemployed, compared with 
only 7 % in March 1948 ; and that in France 
between r948 and 1949 the figure had risen by 
48 %, ·and in the Netherlands by 46 %- Facts 
thus showed that the claims of the representatives 
of France, the United Kingdom and the United 
States of America that unemployment was not 
serious· and that a depression would be averted 
were only wishful thinking and had no foundation 
in reality. · 

Unemployment was also becoming apparent in 
agriculture, in which employment in the United 
States of America showed a drop of 1,8oo,ooo 
between I948 and 1949. That tendency was 
combined with a constant rise in the prices of 
basic commodities. According to the World Econo
mic Report, I948, price levels had been continually 
rising and the increase between 1947 and r948 had 
been 735 % in Bolivia, 466 % in Brazil, 409 % in 
Paraguay, etc. In Iran, the 1948 level had been 
6.6 times as high as the 1939 level, the correspond
ing figures for Iraq and Syria being 6 and 4.6 
times .respectively. 

The result of the operation of those two factors 
must inevitably be a decrease in the standard of living 
of both unemployed and precariously employed 
workers. In addition, social security was in many 
countries· either · unsatisfactory or non-existent. 
Even where it existed i~ covered only a part of the 
workers, and contributions were made, not by the 
employer, ·but by the workers themselves ; . the 
assistance was, moreover:, too insignificant to 
alleviate sensibly the plight of the workers. 

Mass unemployment and its attendant poverty 
had their repercussions on the position of the 
working class as a whole. fl. reserve army of 
unemployed enabled employers to exert pressure on 
the workers, who were forced to submit . to. the 
most shameful exploitation in order to keep their 
jobs. The failure of capitalist States to take 
adequate steps to deal with unemplo:Yment was 
jUstified by their apologists by the necessity for 
maintaining capitalist production at its level of 
efficiency. That point of view had been put 
forward by Mr. Graham Cunningham, of the Asso
ciation of British Industrialists, to the Production 
Planning Committee; Mr.Cunningham had said that 
United Kingdom economy required a reserve of 
unemployed on which employers could draw for their 
manpower, and that in the future, industry would 
have ·to make allowance for such unemployment, 
which was essenti.al to Government policy in respect 
of the wage-earning classes. 

In the light of such a statement, it was not 
surprising to .find that in .the countries of Western 
Europe the· number of unemployed h.ad always 
formed_. a· significant proportion ofthe total labour 
force, even during the .most :flourishing. period 'of 

une augmentation de 370.000 sur le mois precedent 
et de 1.868.ooo sur le mois de juillet r948. Les 
chiffres indiques dans le Rapport. sur l' economie 
mondiale sont effectivement des chiffres officiels qui 
avaient ete publies, mais i1s ne tiennent pas 
compte des chomeurs partiels, dont le nombre, aux 
Etats-Unis d'Ainerique seulement, s'eleve a plu
sieurs millions. D'autres statistiques officielles 
montrent qu'au cours du premier trimestre de 1949, 
il y avait 2 millions de ch6mi:mrs en ltalie, plus 
d'un million dans les zones occidentales d'Allema
gne, . et 40o.ooo en Angleterre ; qu'en mars 1949, 
en Belgique, 12 %, contre 7 % seulement en mars 
1948; des effectifs de la main-d'reuvre etaient sans 
travail et qu' en France, le nombre des chomeurs avait 
augmente de 48 % par rapport a 1948, et en Hollan de 
de 46 %- Les faits demontrent ainsi que les repre
sentants de la France, du Royaume-Uniet desEtats
Unis d' Amerique, en pretendant que le chomage n' est 
pas inquietant et qu'une crise sera evitee, ne font 
que prendre leurs desirs pour des realites. 

On commence egalement a voir apparaltre le 
chOmage dans !'agriculture; aux Etats-Unis d'Ame
rique, le nombre des travailleurs employes dans 
!'agriculture a baisse de r.8oo.ooo entre 1948 et 
1949. A cette tendance s'ajoute la mantee continue 
des prix des produits de base: Selon le Rapport sur 
l' economie mondiale, I948, les niveaux des prix n' out 
pas cesse de monter et }'augmentation, entre 1947 
et 1948, a ete de 735 % pour la Bolivie, de 466 % 
pour le Bresil, de 409 % pour le Paraguay, etc. 
En. Iran, le niveau de 1948 est 6,6 fois plus eleve 
que celui de 1939, les chiffres correspondants pour 
l'Irak et la Syrie etant respectivement de 6 et 4,6. 

Ces deux facteurs, agissant concurremment, 
doivent inevitablement aboutir a une diminution 
du niveau de vie des chomeurs ainsi que des travail
leurs ayant un emploi precaire. En outre, dans de 
nombreux pays, la securite sociale est mal orga
nisee ou inexistante. Meme Ia ou elle existe, seule 
une partie des travailleurs en beneficient, et les 
cotisations ne sont pas payees par l'employeur 
mais par. les ouvriers eux-memes; au surplus, 
!'assistance est trop. insignifiante pour ameliorer 
sensiblement la triste situation des travailleurs .. 

Le ch6mage general et !'indigence qui l'accom
pagne ont leurs repercussions sur la situation de la 
classe ouvriere dans son ensemble. Une armee de 
reserve de chomeurs permet aux pa:trons d'exercer 
une pression sur les travailleurs que la necessite de 
conserver:: leur emploi oblige a se soumettre a 
!'exploitation la plus ehontee. Les defenseurs des 
Etats capitalistes expliquent pourquoi ceux-ci n'ont 
pas reussi a prendre .les mesures qui s'imposent 
pour faire face au ch6mage, en invoquant la neces
site de maintenir la production capitaliste a son 
niveau de rendement. C'est !'argument avance par 
M. Graham Cunningham, de 1'(( Association of Bri
tish Industrialists )), qui a declare au << Production 
Planning Committee» que l'economie du Royaume
Uni a besoin d'une reserve de chomeurs ou les 
patrons puissent puiser leur main-d'reuvre, et qu'a 
l'avenir l'industrie devrait prevoir ce chomage, 
indispensable a la politique gouvernementale en
vers la classe des salaries. 
' Apres. une telle declaration, on n' est pas surpris 
de constater que dans les pays d'Europe occiden
tale le nombre des ch6meurs a toujours represente 
une proportion importante des effectifs de la main
d'reuvre, meme au moment ou l'industrie etait la 



industry. Subsequently, even the Marshall Plan 
had failed to avert an economic depression, unem
ployment in the fifteen Marshall Plan countries 
having risen by r million in 1948. The United 
Nations must take measures to remedy that situa
tion in conformity with Article 55 of the Charter. 
Its responsibility under that Article was enhanced 
by the fact that the problem was .a humanitarian 
one, affecting as it did millions of unemployed and 
all those who went in daily fear of losing their jobs. 
When considering the problem, it should be noted 
that those bodies of the United Nations which might 
be expected to pay attention to it, such as the 
Manpower Committee of the Economic Commission 
for Europe, in fact ignored it or skirted round. it. 

The question had been placed on the Council's 
agenda on the initiative of the World Federation 
of Trade Unions, which had also been responsible 
for raising the questions of equal pay for equal 
work, and of the protection of trade union rights. 

· It was not the Federation's fault if the problems it 
raised were not solved, and the Byelorussian dele
gation hoped that it would continue to raise ques
tions reflecting progressive world public opinion 
and affecting fundamental human rights. The 
attempts made by certain countries, notably the 
United Kingdom, to dismiss the Federation's 
document as "inacceptable", arose simply out of a 
desire to belittle the significance of the problem 
and the prestige of an organization which repre
sented 71 million organized workers. 

The Economic and Social Council had an oppor
tunity of helping to solve the problem, but it must , 
start from the premise that it was a problem which 
affected only the capitalist countries, where owner
ship of the means of production was still in private 
hands, resulting in exploitation of man by man, a 
series of economic crises, and chronic unemploy
ment. In socialist countries such as the Soviet 
Union and the people's democracies of Eastern 
Europe, the question had been solved by the 
workers themselves, when they had risen and 
taken the management of affairs into their own 
hands. His own country might serve as an ex
ample of a State where the sacred right to work was 
assured and the word "unemployment" unknown, 
and where the Government existed to serve the 
citizens, to improve their standard of living and to 
ward off any threat of coming insecurity. 

The Council had received concrete proposals as to 
how the problem might be solved in the draft 
resolution submitted by the World Federation of 
Trade Unions (E/1332/Add.z) and formally spon
sored and endorsed by the Polish representative. 
That resolution contained a complete programme 
of implementation which would improve the lives 
of millions of workers, promote world economy, 
and at the same time establish friendly relations 
between States. By adopting it the United Nations 

· would enhance its own authority and demonstrate 
its equity and effectiveness. 

plus prospere. Par la suite; meme le Plan Marshall 
n'a pas reussi a eviter le marasme economique, le 
nombre des chomeurs ayant augmente d'un mil
lion en 1948 dans les quinze pays recevant l'aide 
Marshall. L'Organisation des Nations Unies doit 
prendre des mesures pour remedier a cette situation 
conformement a I' Article 55 de la Charte. La res
ponsabilite qui lui incombe aux termes de cet 
Article est soulignee par le caractere humanitaire 
du probleme, qui touche des millions de sans
travail et taus ceux qui vivent dans la crainte quo
tidienne de perdre leur emploi. Lorsqu'on etudie 
ce pro bleme, il est a remarquer que les organismes 
des Nations Unies, comme le Comite de la main
d' reuvre de la Commission economique pour !'Eu
rope, qui parai:traient devoir lui accorder une 
attention toute particuliere, s'en desinteressent ou 
l'effleurent sans s'y arreter. 

La question a ete inscrite a l'ordre du jour du 
Conseil sur !'initiative de Ia Federation syndicale 
mondiale, a qui I' on doit egalement d'avoir souleve 
la question du (( salaire egal a travail egal )) et celle 
de la protection des droits syndicaux. Ce n'est pas 
la faute de la Federation si les problemes qu'elle 
a ainsi poses ne sont pas resolus, et la delegation 
de la ·Bielorussie espere que la Federation ne se 
lassera pas de soulever des questions qui corres
pondent aux tendances de !'opinion progressiste 
dans le monde et qui interessent les droits fonda-· 
mentaux de l'homme. Si certains pays, et en parti
culier le Royaume-Uni, ont tente d'ecarter le docu
ment de la Federation en le declarant « inaccep
table l>, cela s'explique par le desir de sous-estimer 
!'importance du probleme et d'amoindrir le prestige 
d'une organisation qui represente 71 millions de 
travailleurs organises. 

Le Conseil economique et social a 1' occasion de 
contribuer a la solution du probleme, mais pour ce 
faire, il doit admettre comme premisses que ce 
probleme ne se pose que dans les pays capitalistes, 
ou Ia propriete des moyens de production est encore 
entre les mains des particuliers, ce qui a pour conse
quences !'exploitation de l'homme par l'homme, des 
crises economiques periodiques et un chomage 
chronique. Dans les pays socialistes, tels que l'Union 
sovietique et les democraties populaires de !'Europe 
orientale, la question a ete resolue par les travail
leurs eux-memes, lorsqu'ils se sont souleves et se 
sont empares de la direction des affaires politiques. 
Le pays de 1' orateur peut constituer un exemple 
d'une societe ou le droit sacre au travail est garanti, 
ou le mot << chomage >> est inconnu, et ou le Gouver
nement n'a d'autre role que de servir le peuple, 
d'ameliorer son niveau de vie, et de le proteger 
contre tout risque d'insecurite a venir. 

Le Conseil a ete saisi de propositions concretes 
qui indiquent par quels moyens le probleme pour
rait etre resolu: c'est le projet de resolution de la 
Federation syndicale mondiale (E/1332/Add.z) que 
le representant de la Pologne fait sien et dont il 
pnkonise !'adoption. Ce projet de resolution com
prend tout un programme d'a.pplication qui, s'il 
etait mis en ceuvre, permettrait d'ameliorer les 
conditions d:existence de millions de travailleurs, 
de developper 1' economie mondiale et, en meme 
temps, d'assurer la bonne entente internationale. 
En adoptant ce projet de resolution, !'Organisation · 
des Nations Unies renforcerait sa propre autorite 
et donnerait une preuve de son sens de l'equite et 
de l'efficacite de son action. 

694 



The Economic and Unemployment Commission 
had come to the conclusion that the Sub-Commis
sions on Economic Development and on Employ
ment and Economic Stability should be abolished. 
That decision had not been supported by the 
Byelorussian representative to the Commission,,nor 
did it now enjoy the support of the Byelorussian 
delegation, which considered the reasons given in 
paragraph 55 of the Commission's report (E/1356) 
unconvincing. No United Nations body should 
be blamed if it based its work on the need for 
co-ordinating the divergent viewpoints of its mem
bers {sub-paragraph (b)). Nor could his delegation 
agree, as was contended in sub-paragraph (d), 
that the Sub-Commissions' conclusions were of no 
value to the Commission ; the Sub-Commission on 
Economic Development especially had done valu
able work during its third session in connexion with 
the financing of economic development in under
developed countries, and its recommendations 
should be given due consideration. 

The explanation of the proposal that they 
should be abolished lay not in the fact that the 
Sub-Commissions were unequal to their tasks, but 
in the fact that they had been bold enough to 
undertake studies which had not been in line with 
the policy of certain Governments. 

The transfer of the Sub-Commissions' functions 
to the Secretariat, as suggested in paragraph 54, 
would entail the engagement of additional staff, 
including many individual experts. Moreover, the 
Byelorussian delegation could not agree to the 
proposal adopted by the majority of the Commis
sion that sessions should be held a few weeks 
before Council sessions, in ·order that the Commis
sion might study the Council agenda. That would 
change the Commission from a representative body 
to a purely technical one, and its study of the 
Council agenda might deprive it of the opportunity 
of making its own recommendations to the Council. 
He fully agreed with the statement of the lndian 
representative (E/I357) that the Commission had 
acted hastily and inadvisedly and that its decision 
should be reversed by the Council as not in accord
ance with Article 55 of the Charter, and not corres
ponding to the real interests of the United Nations. 

The meeting rose at 10.55 p.m~ 

695 

La Commission des questions economiques et de 
l'emploi a conclu a la suppression de la Sons-Com
mission du developpement economique et de la 
Sous,-Commission de l'emploi et de Ia stabilite 
economique. Le representant de la Bielorussie a 
cette Commission n'a pas donne son accord a cette 
decision, et, a l'heure actuelle, Ia delegation de Ia 
Bielorussie ne l'approuve pas non plus, car elle 
considere que les raisons invoquees· au paragra
phe 55 du rapport de la Commission (E/1356) pour 
la .justifier ne sont pas convaincantes. Aucun orga
nisme des Nations Unies n'est a blamer parce que, 
dans ses travaux, il s'est inspire de la necessite de 
concilier les points de vue divergents de ses mem
bres (voir alinea b) du paragraphe 55). La delegation 
de Bielorussie ne peut pas non plus approuver que 
l'on dise, a •I'alinea d), que les conclusions des 
Sons-Commissions sont sans interet pour la Commis
sion. La Sons-Commission du developpement econo
mique, en particulier, a fait reuvre utile au cours 
de sa troisieme session en etudiant le financement 
du developpement economique dans' les pays 
insuffisamment developpes, et ses recommandations 
meritent !'attention. 

Si I' on a propose la suppression de ces Sons
Commissions, ce n'est pas parce qu'elles ont ete 
au-dessous de leur tache, mais parce qu'elles ont 
eu l'audace d'entreprendre des etudes qui ne 
concordaient pas avec la politique de certains 
Gouvernements. 

Si les attributions des Sons-Commissions dont 
il s'agit devaient etre transferees au Secretariat, 
comme on le propose au paragraphe 54, il faudrait 
recruter un personnel supplementaire parmi lequel 
de nombreux experts. Par ailleurs, la delegation 
de la Bielorussie ne peut approuver la decision 
·prise par la majorite de la Commission de tenir les 
sessions un certain nombre de semaines avant la 
session du Conseil, pour qu'elle puisse ainsi etudier 
l'ordre du jour du Conseil. Au lieu d'etre un organe 
representatif, la Commission deviendrait. ainsi un 
organe purement technique, et, du fait qu'elle 
etudierait l'ordre du jour du Conseil, i1 ne lui serait 
peut-etre plus loisible de presenter ?eS propres 
recommandations au Conseil. L'orateur s'associe 
pleinement a l'avis exprime par le representant de 
l'Inde (E/I357) qui declare que Ia Commission a pris 
une decision irrefiechie et malavisee et que sa 
decision devait etre infirmee par le Conseil comme 
n'etant conforme ni a l'Article 55 de la Charte, 
ni aux veritables interets de !'Organisation: des 
Nations Unies. 

La seance est levee a 22 h. 55· 


